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From: Martin Thomas < @agr.org.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 5 August 2025 4:52 PM
To:
Subject: RE: Understanding the impact of marketing communications on gambling

Hi  
 
Just checking up on this detail from Roy Morgan, was it of interest? Let me know if we can help at all  
 
 
Martin Thomas 
Chief Executive Officer  

@agr.org.au    
   

  
www.agr.org.au   
Follow us on Facebook 
Keep up with the latest news from the Alliance on X (Twitter) 
Our Community House 

552 Victoria St, Wurundjeri Country  
North Melbourne, VIC, 3051  
 
I acknowledge that I live and work on the lands of the Ngunnawal people and I pay my respects to 
Elders past, present and emerging. 
 
 
 

From: Martin Thomas  
Sent: Tuesday, July 29, 2025 7:37 AM 
To: @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Understanding the impact of marketing communications on gambling 
 
Hi  
 
Here is the initial response from Roy Morgan on the research we have been discussing 
 
I am happy for you to deal with them directly if it is easier.  
 
Let me know if I can be of help  
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
 
 
 

From: @roymorgan.com>  
Sent: Friday, July 25, 2025 1:56 PM 
To: Martin Thomas < @agr.org.au> 
Subject: Understanding the impact of marketing communications on gambling 
 
Hi Martin, 
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Head of Retail & Consumer Products 

  

 

  

Head Office: Tonic House, 386 Flinders Lane, Melbourne Vic 3000 

Mobile:  

www.roymorgan.com 
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From: Anna Bardsley < @gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, 25 August 2025 11:16 AM
To:
Cc: Kate Seselja
Subject: Re: Meeting - APH Thursday 10.30am [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 
 
Dear   
 
Thank you for organising this. Kate has a pass to APH, so we won't need an escort.  
We look forward to the meeting. 
Regards,  
 
 
Anna Bardsley 
Co-Founder 
Gambling Harm Lived Experience Experts 
 

@gmail.com 
 

GHLEE.org  
Error! Filename not specified.Language Guide 
 
 
 
 
 

OFFICIAL 
On Mon, 25 Aug 2025 at 11:07, s@mo.communications.gov.au> wrote: 

OFFICIAL 
 

OFFICIAL 

  

  

Dear  

  

Thank you for your time on the phone this morning.  

  

Confirming that we have yourself and GHLEE Co-Chair Kate Seselja booked in for a meeting here in Parliament 
House at  on Thursday 28 August 2025 at 10.30am.  
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information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may result in severe 
penalties.  
If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the Department on +61 (2) 6274 7111 and delete all copies of 
this transmission together with any attachments. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------- 
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Early insights on ‘Scambling’: Financial Harm, 
Exploitation and Unwitting Money Laundering in 
Remote Communities 
 
 
August, 2025 

 

 

Note about this brief: There are three powerful videos with quotes from people who 
have played scambling apps, community members, financial counsellors, capability 
workers, educators and other sector workers. Links are at the start of the ‘background’, 
‘impact’ and ‘conclusion’ sections. 

BACKGROUND 

Link to video explaining what scambling is and how it works. 
 

Across the country, particularly in First Nations and remote communities, financial 
counsellors, capability workers and No Interest Loans (NILS) providers are uncovering a 
disturbing new pattern of harm. People are losing money, being excluded from banking, 
falling out with family and, in many cases, unknowingly participating in money 
laundering schemes run by organised crime groups.  

The mechanism is a scam dressed up as online gambling, now known across the sector 
as “scambling” or “ding ding” in communities. The way it starts is often deceptively 
simple. A person sees an ad on Facebook, or a friend shares a link in a WhatsApp group. 
It looks like a game. It’s colourful, social, with the promise of winning money and people 
are invited to download an app and sign up. In some instances, they sign up via well-
known app stores like Google or Apple. As one financial counsellors describes it, “it then 
spreads like wildfire” through small remote communities as people recommend it to 
friends and family. 

These scambling apps are unlicensed, unregulated and illegal. 

A typical pattern is that, at first, a person is given free credits. But once those credits run 
out, the app prompts them to start spending. They are encouraged to send money via 
PayID and Osko to purchase credits to play. 
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 2 

 

(Screenshot from one of the games) 

The apps often direct users to pay money into companies set up for the sole purpose of 
moving funds. The names on bank statements will sometimes deliberately use business 
names that closely resemble legitimate Australian companies, differing by only a single 
character or space to mislead users and evade detection. Other times the account 
names seem to belong to individuals. They also often change the account details and 
even warn customers about this. They use companies with no websites, no real 
customers, and no legitimate business activity. The money seemingly disappears. 

 

(Screenshot from one of the games showing they often change company account 
details) 

Some people are allowed to win small amounts or given special bonuses to keep them 
playing. Others are incentivised to refer their friends, reinforcing the illusion of a trusted 
platform. But the winnings dry up. The cash doesn’t come back and for many, the 
realisation that they’ve been scammed comes too late. 
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 6 

 

It also found:  

The consultation findings were consistent across all community groups, with every 
participant reporting that gambling was widespread and causing significant harm in 
their community. 

• Card games were reported in all communities, with Wadeye and 
Wurrumiyanga reporting very high rates of harm from card games; 

• All communities additionally reported extreme concerns for the harm being 
caused by online casinos; 

• and the lack of community knowledge surrounding the predatory nature of 
online casinos. 
 

Although this consultation is on gambling, it is safe to assume that scambling is having 
similar impacts on remote communities. 

2. Access to No Interest Loans (NILS)  
 

The effects of scambling are also being felt in the growing ineligibility of clients for NILS. 
NILS offer a pathway to financial independence and access to essential goods and 
services without the burden of high-interest debt.  

NILS providers across the Northern Territory and Central Australia report that applicants 
are increasingly being declined due to recent, frequent gambling transactions linked to 
scambling platforms. In some communities, every single applicant during an outreach 
visit was deemed ineligible. This means people are unable to access safe, affordable 
credit for essential items like fridges, washing machines or medical equipment.  

One provider noted that it took multiple education sessions and several months of 
financial coaching before a single client was eligible again. As one worker explained: 

“People are being locked out of basic, life-improving financial support because 
they’ve unknowingly been caught up in scambling. They lose access to loans that 
could help them escape hardship.” 

 

Case study 
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 11 

money. It also causes lots of people in that town to start playing that game in 
particular to try and win as well, but they never do.” 

And,  

“Families will share a phone amongst many people to ensure someone is always 
playing the scambling games. I have seen families pass the phone out of windows 
and yell at someone to immediately start playing to keep streaks alive or because 
they feel a win is coming.” 

 

Bank responses  

While some banks have taken steps to inform customers about online scams and 
created pathways for advocates to report suspicious transactions, financial counsellors, 
capability workers and NILs providers say the broader response remains inconsistent 
and inadequate. Even when a report is made, responses are often delayed, with little 
feedback or clarity about what’s happening or what to do next. Unless a case is 
escalated as a priority complaint, it frequently receives no meaningful follow-up.  

One frontline worker told us there is also confusion around what to do when a client is 
locked out of their account. He said some banks are saying that clients can simply go to 
their local council with ID and their account will be unlocked. The problem is, they 
provide no other details and when the worker called a number of local councils to 
check, they knew nothing about it.  

Another worker said a number of banks will not let financial counsellors speak on behalf 
of clients in relation to scambling. He said they insist on speaking with the customer and 
that he suspects: 

“They know that if it’s an indigenous person, it’s less likely they are going to 
 pursue it.” 

He also said some banks say one thing one day and another thing the next. For example, 
One Indigenous Banking department told him that a gambling block had been put on 
their customers but the Complaints Department told him that could not be done. 

Workers think more could be done to detect patterns of harm early, such as repeated 
PayID transactions or unusual activity in business accounts. They’re also asking for more 
clarity and shared responsibility. Too often, the burden of managing the fallout falls on 
customers and community workers, rather than being addressed at a systemic level. 
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 12 

Complexity in Reporting  

Responding to scambling is complex and labour-intensive, with no single agency able to 
address the full picture. Banks can be asked to stop suspicious transactions, but 
outcomes are inconsistent and often unclear. There’s no national gambling regulator. 
ACMA can block illegal gambling websites, but not apps, and it doesn’t help clients 
recover lost funds. Reports might also be made to AUSTRAC, ASIC, the ATO or ACCC, 
each with different roles, processes, and limited powers.  

For frontline workers and the people affected, this means navigating a fragmented and 
often frustrating system, reporting the same case to multiple agencies, following up 
repeatedly, and still rarely seeing meaningful outcomes. Despite good intentions across 
the system, the burden remains firmly on those experiencing harm and the workers  
supporting them. 

 

There is a need for clarity on exactly which organisation/s our sector should report to 
when they detect scambling and clear guidelines on what aspects should be reported to 
who. 

WHAT NOW? 
 

Link to video on what needs to happen now. 

It’s easy to dismiss these stories as individual lapses in judgment. But the reality is more 
complicated and more systemic. Social media advertising algorithms mean that once 
one person in a small town engages with a scambling platform, everyone else starts 
seeing the same ads. In communities of just a few hundred people, the ratio of 
advertisements to users skyrockets.  

These gambling scams are designed to spread socially, and they do so quickly and 
widely.  

This anecdote about recruitment difficulties facing a Community Development Program 
(CDP) speaks volumes: 

“We have had many issues hiring to the Gambling Harm Educator role because: 
there is no interest from any of our job seekers due to most people and or their 
families are heavily involved in online gambling” (From CDP worker in Santa 
Teresa). 
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 13 

Financial counsellors, capability workers and community organisations are reporting 
that scambling is growing fast, exploiting the most vulnerable, and entangling people, 
often unknowingly, in high-risk money laundering schemes.  

The people who are seeing it most clearly are not law enforcement or regulators. It’s the 
financial counsellors and capability workers doing the hard work on the ground – and 
they are determined to stop this damaging trend. Catholic Care NT’s financial wellbeing 
manager, Kelly Gulliver, says: 

“we’re desperately trying to find a solution to stop it. What we can do about it is 
keep investigating and find out more about it and raising awareness with people 
impacted by it, so they can understand what it is and they can stop and spread 
that work in their community.” 

Scambling has not been around for long but it’s already having an enormous negative 
impact, which is only going to get worse in the coming months and years. 

Those directly impacted in remote communities, like Rosa from Wadeye, have a blunt 
message for the organisations scamming her people: 

“They have to stop. It's, it's not our way and our money, our bank, our country, 
our people. Um, it's not for out there, for someone that is just pretending to be, 
um, a millionaire, you know, trying to share this money of the ding ding. No, it's, 
it's not, if, if it was my, if my grandfather would be, would be alive, he would say, 
he would talk about this a lot and say, stop.”  

The time to act is now. 

 

NB. We also have information that some clients have lost remediation funds and others 
have been subject to identity theft. We will further populate this document if/when we 
get more concrete examples of these impacts. 
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From: Invites.wells
Sent: Monday, 1 September 2025 1:45 PM
To:
Cc:
Subject: RESPONSE: Urgent Action Needed: Gambling Harm Reform & Lived Experience 

Advocacy [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

OFFICIAL 
 

OFFICIAL 
 

 
Dear  
  
On behalf of Hon. Anika Wells, Minister for Communications, Minister for Sport and Federal Member for Lilley, 
thank you once again for requesting a meeting. 
  
The Minister received a large volume of meeting requests for the past couple of months and is unable to 
accommodate your invitation at this time. Her adviser,  would be happy to meet on her behalf. 
  
Please reach out to  (cc’d), directly to organise a mutually convenient time. 
  
Kind regards, 
 
 

 
Office of the Hon Anika Wells MP • Minister for Communications and Minister for Sport 

@mo.communications.gov.au 
Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600, Australia 
 
 

 

OFFICIAL 
 
 
 
 

OFFICIAL 

From:   
Sent: Wednesday, 16 July 2025 11:15 AM 
To: Albanese, Anthony (MP) <A.Albanese.MP@aph.gov.au>; Wells, Anika (MP) <Anika.Wells.MP@aph.gov.au>; 
jacinta.allan@parliament.vic.gov.au 
Subject: Urgent Action Needed: Gambling Harm Reform & Lived Experience Advocacy 
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Dear Prime Minister Albanese, Minister Wells, and Premier Allan, 

My name is . I’m a , and for over 12 years, I was addicted to gambling. Today, 
I’m in recovery and I’ve turned my story into a movement called No More Bets, where I share my journey online to 
raise awareness, support others, and spark much-needed conversation around gambling harm in Australia. 

I’m writing to you not for sympathy, but to ask for leadership. 

Gambling is deeply embedded in our cultureand it’s hurting people every day. I’ve seen firsthand how easily lives 
can spiral when gambling is normalized, especially through relentless advertising, betting incentives, and lack of 
early education. 

What’s most frustrating is that gambling is just as harmful if not more so than smoking, drugs, or alcohol. Yet we’ve 
banned or heavily restricted the advertising of those industries, while gambling continues to be promoted across 
television, sports, and especially social media, often targeting young people and vulnerable groups. 

I’m reaching out to offer my story, not as a statistic, but as someone who has lived through it and now dedicates 
every day to helping others break free. I believe lived experience voices like mine must be included in reform, 
education, and prevention efforts whether that’s in policy, school programs, or government-backed initiatives. 

Here’s what I’d love to discuss: 

 Support for gambling education in schools led by lived experience voices 
 Stronger restrictions around gambling advertising and sports sponsorship 
 Funding or collaboration opportunities to expand No More Bets into communities 
 Involvement in shaping lived experience-informed policy on gambling harm 

 

I would greatly appreciate the opportunity to speak with your office or teams further about how we can work 
together to protect Australians from the harm gambling causes. 

 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cpwucpYGKo8 
 

 

Warm regards, 

 

Founder – No More Bets 

📍 Victoria, Australia 
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From: @gpnw.net>
Sent: Monday, 1 September 2025 2:47 PM
To:
Cc:
Subject: Lotteries and Gambling Harm Research
Attachments: Image.jpeg; 250901_Lotteries and Gambling Harm Research.pdf

[You don't often get email from @gpnw.net. Learn why this is important at 
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
Hi Anna, 
 
I hope you’re well and you’re enjoying the double sitting week. 
 
Thanks again for taking the time recently to meet  and me. 
 
As discussed in our meeting, I’m pleased to share a briefing note that outlines the latest academic research and 
government data on gambling harm and lotteries compared to other forms of gambling. 
 
If you have any questions about our sector in the coming weeks and months, please feel free to get in touch. 
 
Kind regards 

 
 
 
 

 
[signatureImage] 
 
 
NOTICE: This  transmitted message and any attachments may contain privileged and confidential information 
intended only for the use of the addressee named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this message you 
are hereby notified that any use dissemination, distribution or reproduction in any form of this message is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this message in error please reply immediately by way of advice to this office. 
 
It is the addressee's/recipient's duty to virus scan and otherwise test the information provided herewith prior to 
loading or saving to any computer system. Global Players Network Pty Ltd does not warrant that the information is 
free of any virus or any other defect or error. 
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Lotteries and Gambling Harm Research 
This briefing note draws on government data from federal and state agencies alongside leading 
academic research in Australia and internationally to assess the harm profile of draw-based lotteries.  

There is clear and consistent evidence that, despite their widespread popularity, lotteries contribute 
only negligible levels of gambling harm compared to poker machines, wagering, and casino games. 
This low level of harm is attributable to the structural characteristics of draw-based lotteries, which 
lack the capacity for high-frequency, repetitive play and are typically associated with modest 
expenditure by participants. 

Moving forward, we encourage government to adopt a risk-based approach to future gambling 
reforms, ensuring regulatory focus is directed at the products that cause the greatest harm. 

Government & Independent Research 

NSW Gambling Survey 2024 

• “EGMs are responsible for more than half of all harm to gamblers (57,832 Years Lived with 
Disability or YLD), followed by wagering products and casino games. Although graphed for 
completeness, no statistically detectable impact was found for lotteries, keno and bingo.” 
(pp. 86, 134–135) 

Queensland Government Statistician’s Office (QGSO) 2021 

• “Draw-based lotteries are the most commonly played activity on a weekly basis, yet they 
represent only a small proportion of gambling revenue. By far the greatest expenditure is on 
EGMs, which account for 51% of total gambling revenue.” (Quote taken from CQ University 
report, citing QGSO report).  

NSW GambleAware 2020–21 Annual Statistics 

• Of 2,886 people seeking help, 73.3% identified pokies as their primary gambling problem, 
13.1% race betting, 7.9% sports betting, and half of 1% from lotteries (13 people total).
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Productivity Commission Report on Gambling (2010)  

• “Lotteries are the most common form of gambling participation in Australia, but they are 
associated with very low levels of harm.” 

• “Lotteries were described as a largely benign form of gambling, with low intensity and low 
expenditure characteristics that result in minimal contribution to problem gambling rates. 

 

Australian Academic Research 

CQUniversity – Experimental Gambling Research Laboratory 

• “EGMs are responsible for 51–57% of gambling problems in Australia… Bingo and lottery play 
show no statistically detectable risk for gambling problems.” 

• “Lotteries/lotto comprise about 10% of total gambling revenue (QGSO, 2021) but 
contribute negligibly to gambling problems… explained by high participation rate but very 
low individual spending.” 

• “Lotteries, with a coefficient of 0.001, were the least problematic and were not 
statistically significant even in our large sample.” 

The Conversation column (CQUniversity authors, 2024) 

• “Lotteries accounted for just 0.1–1% of gambling problems… Even if we include scratchies, 
this only adds 2–5%, far below sports and race betting.” 

• “The average spend on pokies among the 16% who play them is ~$4,782 per year, compared to 
~$377 per year for lotteries.” 
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Grattan Institute Report 2024 – Preventing Gambling Harm 

• “Lotteries and scratchies are popular, but relatively low risk. They tend to be slower, with 
fewer bells and whistles, lessening the potential for addiction and harmful patterns of use. 
Rates of serious gambling harm are lower for people who only gamble on lotteries than for 
other gamblers.” 

 

International Research 

• In 2023, the UK Government released their Gambling-related harms evidence review, that 
confirmed that “harmful gambling has a very different activity profile to general gambling. It 
includes low National Lottery participation and high participation in online gambling including: 
slots, casino and bingo games, electronic gambling machines in bookmakers, sports and other 
event betting, betting exchanges and dog racing.   

• A Swedish study from 2017 found “there is solid evidence that some forms of gambling (e.g. 
EGMs, casino games and some types of sports betting) are more closely associated with PG 
than other forms (e.g. weekly sports and horse pools, traditional lotteries and instant lottery 
tickets).”  These researchers found that “there were fewer problem gamblers than average 
among those who participated in lotteries and number games.”   

• A meta-analysis of Canada’s legal gambling industry in 2016, found that video lottery terminals 
(i.e., EGMs located in bars) were the gambling format most closely associated with problem 
and pathological gambling in Canada. 

 

Advocacy & Media Commentary 

Tim Costello – Alliance for Gambling Reform 

• “Just over half of the nation’s gambling problems derive from poker machines (52–57%). 
Wagering accounts for more than 20%, casino up to 14%, keno up to 6%, and lotteries barely 
1%.” (AGR Media Release)  
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10 September 2025 
 
Hon Anika Wells MP 

Minister for Communications 

Minister for Sport 

PO Box 6022 
House of Representatives, Parliament House 
Canberra ACT 2600  
Anika.Wells.MP@aph.gov.au  

 

Dear Minister,  

 

REQUEST FOR MEETING TO DISCUSS REGULATION OF HARMFUL PRODUCT ADVERTISING AND 
GENDERED VIOLENCE  

 

I am writing to request a meeting with you during the October sitting period, together with FARE 
Board member Jackie Trad, to introduce myself as the CEO of FARE and to discuss with you 
FARE’s research and campaigns on gendered violence and the marketing of harmful products, as 
well as National Cabinet’s response to the expert-led ‘Rapid Review of Prevention Approaches to 
End Gender-Based Violence’.   

The Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (FARE) is a not-for-profit organisation with a 
vision for an Australia free from alcohol harms – where communities are healthy and well, and 
where laws, policies and programs are fair, equitable and just. Working with local communities, 
people with lived experience of alcohol harm, values-aligned organisations, health professionals, 
researchers and governments across the nation, we are improving the health and wellbeing of 
everyone in Australia.  

As you know, last year, National Cabinet committed to action on alcohol-related Domestic, 
Family and Sexual Violence (DFSV). The Rapid Review reported in August 2024 and made specific 
recommendations addressing alcohol as part of a wider approach to reducing DFSV.  

One recommendation centres on strengthening the alcohol and gambling regulatory 
environments, including restricting advertising. In recent years, alcohol marketing has 
increasingly taken a digital form in online spaces. This is particularly alarming, as these data-
driven marketing practices are resulting in high-risk groups - including people at risk of alcohol 
use disorders and young people - being increasingly being exposed to advertising. Even without 
these digital marketing tactics, children are still significantly exposed to alcohol advertising in 
their day-to-day lives, with the majority (70%) of 15- to 17-year-olds having seen alcohol 
advertising within the previous month. Companies selling harmful products, such as alcohol and 
gambling, are still permitted to advertise during sports broadcasts, during times when children 
are likely to be watching.  
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OFFICIAL 

From: Invites.wells < @mo.communications.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 2 September 2025 10:03 AM 
To: @financialcounsellingaustralia.org.au 
Cc: @mo.communications.gov.au>; Invites.wells 
< @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: RESPONSE: Sharing report on illegal online gambling scams targeting First Nations communities 
[SEC=OFFICIAL] 
  

OFFICIAL 

  
OFFICIAL 

  

  
Dear Dom 
  
Thank you for taking the time to contact the Hon. Anika Wells, Minister for Communications, Minister for Sport and 
Federal Member for Lilley. 
  
Unfortunately, due to competing commitments, the Minister is unable to accept your kind invitation for a meeting 
at this time.  
  
However, her adviser  is available and would be more than happy to meet with you and discuss.  
  
She is available at , also (cc’d). 
  
Kind regards, 
  

 
Office of the Hon Anika Wells MP • Minister for Communications and Minister for Sport 

@mo.communications.gov.au 
Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600, Australia 
  
  
  

OFFICIAL 

  

OFFICIAL 

From: Domenique Meyrick < @financialcounsellingaustralia.org.au>  
Sent: Monday, 18 August 2025 11:23 AM 
To: Wells, Anika (MP) <Anika.Wells.MP@aph.gov.au> 
Cc: @financialcounsellingaustralia.org.au>;  
< @financialcounsellingaustralia.org.au> 
Subject: Sharing report on illegal online gambling scams targeting First Nations communities 
  
Dear Minister Wells, 
  
I am writing from Financial Counselling Australia, the national peak body for the financial counselling sector,  to 
share our new paper on illegal online gambling scams, known as scambling, that are disproportionately affecting 
First Nations communities across remote and regional Australia. 
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From: Mark Davis < @acl.org.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 7 October 2025 3:50 PM
To:
Cc: Invites.wells
Subject: RE: RESPONSE: Meeting Request - Australian Christian Lobby [SEC=OFFICIAL]

 
  
I should have menƟoned that Michelle would parƟcularly like to discuss online gambling,  

. 
  
Thanks 
  
Mark 
  

 

Mark Davis 
Chief Operating Officer | Director, Federal Politics 

 
Web      acl.org.au 

           

 
This email, its contents and any attachments ("Email") are confidential and may be privileged.  Any unauthorised use, distribution or copying is prohibited.  If you have 
received this Email in error, please immediately contact the sender.  If you are not the named recipient, any use, reliance upon it, disclosure or copying of this email is 
unauthorised.  The opinions, conclusions and other information contained in the message are those of the sender and not necessarily those of The Australian Christian 
Lobby. 

From: Mark Davis < @acl.org.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 7 October 2025 1:59 PM 
To: h@mo.communications.gov.au> 
Cc: Invites.wells < @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: RESPONSE: Meeting Request - Australian Christian Lobby [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
  
Hi  
  
Thanks for making Ɵme to meet with Michelle Pearse and I. 
  
AƩached is a draŌ agenda.  Happy for you to idenƟfy which items you would like to discuss. 
  
Many thanks 
  
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
Sent: Wednesday, 1 October 2025 12:51 PM 
To: @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Cc: Invites.wells < @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: RESPONSE: Meeting Request - Australian Christian Lobby [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
  
Hi  
  
That works well for Michelle and I.  Which office are you located in? 
  
If you need to contact me on the day, my mobile number is . 
  
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
From: @mo.communications.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 1 October 2025 12:24 PM 
To: Mark Davis < @acl.org.au> 
Cc: Invites.wells < @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: RESPONSE: Meeting Request - Australian Christian Lobby [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
  

OFFICIAL 

  
OFFICIAL 

  

  
Hi Mark,  
  
I am available on the 8th at 3.30?  
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OFFICIAL 
  
  

OFFICIAL 

From: Mark Davis < @acl.org.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 30 September 2025 2:09 PM 
To: @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Cc: Invites.wells < @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: RESPONSE: Meeting Request - Australian Christian Lobby [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
  
Hello  
  
ACL’s CEO, Michelle Pearse, and I will be at Parliament House on 8 and 9 October.  Do you have any 
capacity to meet between 1:30pm and 4:00pm on those days? 
  
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
Sent: Monday, 29 September 2025 9:23 AM 
To: Mark Davis < @acl.org.au> 
Cc: Invites.wells < @mo.communications.gov.au>;  

@mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: RESPONSE: Meeting Request - Australian Christian Lobby [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
  

OFFICIAL 

  
OFFICIAL 

  

  
Dear Mark 
  
On behalf of Hon. Anika Wells, Minister for Communications, Minister for Sport and Federal Member for Lilley, 
thank you once again for requesting a meeting. 
  
Unfortunately Minister Wells is unable to meet at this time and sends her apologies. Her adviser,  would 
be happy to meet on her behalf. 
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
Sent: Friday, 12 September 2025 11:47 AM 
To: Wells, Anika (MP) <Anika.Wells.MP@aph.gov.au> 
Subject: Meeting Request - Australian Christian Lobby 
  
Dear Minister 
  
On behalf the Australian ChrisƟan Lobby (ACL), and our CEO Michelle Pearse, I would like to congratulate 
you on your re-elecƟon and re-appointment to the Cabinet of the 48th Parliament of Australia. I sincerely 
hope this term of government provides you with opportunity to progress many important reforms for our 
wonderful country. 
  
ACL has grown to an organisaƟon of over 250,000 supporters and 30 staff across the naƟon. As it has done 
since its incepƟon 30 years ago, ACL will conƟnue to engage construcƟvely with all Members and Senators 
on maƩers of importance to ChrisƟans. 
  
In this regard, Michelle and I would appreciate meeƟng with you to discuss gambling reform and other 
current maƩers of importance.  We are parƟcularly keen to explore areas where we can work together. 
  
I would appreciate it if your diary manager could reply to this email with your availability or call the ACL 
office on . 
  
Yours sincerely 
  
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
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From: Lauren Levin < >
Sent: Thursday, 16 October 2025 12:12 PM
To:
Subject: Re: Zoom meeting time: Request to meet: 4-Corners - gambling policy 

[SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 
 
That’s good   
 
See you next Wed 22nd at 11 am on Zoom. 
 
Do we have an hour?  
 
To help me prep, what areas is the Minister most interested in?  
 
I would also appreciate and informal briefing on: 
 

 Lotteries: the Ministerial review and decision on lotteries carveout and the IGA (I wrote a submission on the credit card gambling 
final consultation, and this led to the Minister announcing her review within 12 mths, but that time has passed). 

 Social casinos (the loophole being exploited) - ACMA has raised this in its submissions, as have I. My reading of the IGA is that social 
casinos are captured (ie that social casinos are not legal under the IGA) and there is currently a class action in the courts based on 
this interpretation too. But ACMA says it is not clear. There is probably going to be some media on this - person who became 
addicted to Hearts of Vegas and stole about $700,000. It was all spent on a single company owned by Australian gambling company 
Aristocrat. The money was stolen from a small business. This person went to jail. Aristocrat never returned the stolen funds, never 
inquired about ’source of funds’ under AML obligations (same as in the 4-corners story). 

 The 'data vault' (giving government, regulators, coroners access to data …. See my Questions on Notice paper on data vaults to the 
Murphy Inquiry. I was then contacted by the researcher appointed to investigate the practicalities of implementing this. See 
submission 152.1. On my Churchill Fellowship, a number of the gambling regulators said this was their essential tool. 

 
Who is Tanya Plibersek’s gambling advisor? You’re welcome to invite her advisor too. We always used to meet all together as there was so 
much common ground. Please can I have the advisor’s contact details. 
 
Regards 
 

 
 
Lauren Levin 

 

 
 
 
 

 

OFFICIAL 
On 16 Oct 2025, at 11:30 am, @mo.communications.gov.au> wrote: 
 

OFFICIAL 
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OFFICIAL 
  

  
Hi Lauren 
  
Sorry, I was travelling yesterday- but can do next Wednesday at 11? 
  

  
  
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Microsoft Teams Need help? 

Join the meeting now 

 

 

 

Dial in by phone 

 

 

 

Join on a video conferencing device 

 

 

 

For organizers: Meeting options | Reset dial-in PIN 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

  
  
  
_____________________________________________ 
From: Lauren Levin   
Sent: Thursday, 16 October 2025 10:24 AM 
To: @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Cc: Minister.wells < @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: Zoom meeting time: Request to meet: 4-Corners - gambling policy [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
  

OFFICIAL 
 
Hi  
  

 You don't often get email from  Learn why this is important  
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Following up on the Zoom meeting. Can we please lock in a time for next Wed, 
before 1 pm. (Or after 4 pm). 
  
Lauren 
  
Lauren Levin 

 
  
  
  

  

OFFICIAL 
On 14 Oct 2025, at 6:32 pm,  wrote: 
  

Hi  
  

Yes, I imagined that the Optus 000 issues would have kept 
you busy. 
  
Next Wednesday is good. Can you find an hour (or more) 
so we’re not too rushed. I will share some overseas 
models from the Churchill Fellowship that will hopefully 
be valuable to you.  
  
A longer time is better as I would also like to hear where 
you’re up to and where I can be most of value. 

  
Pls send through a calendar invite for next Wed at the 
time that works for you and a Teams link. 

  
Regards 

  
Lauren 
  
Lauren Levin 

 
  
  
  

On 14 Oct 2025, at 4:04 pm,  
< @mo.communications.gov.au> wrote: 
  

OFFICIAL 
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4

  
OFFICIAL 

Hi   
  
Apologies for the delay I’ve had a busy week, I’d like to meet and 
discuss though, are you free next Wednesday or Thursday for a 
teams meeting?  
  

 
  

  

OFFICIAL 
From: "Lauren Levin"  
Date: Tuesday, 14 October 2025 at 3:55:43 pm 
To: "Minister.wells" < @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Cc:  < @mo.communications.gov.au> 
Subject: Re: Request to meet: 4-Corners - gambling policy 
  

Hi  

Following up on my request to meet the Minister. 
Regards 

Lauren 
  

Lauren Levin 

 

Gambling Policy Hub  
(formerly Director of Policy. Financial Counselling 
Australia). 
  
  
  

On 6 Oct 2025, at 3:58 pm, Lauren Levin 
< > wrote: 
  
Hi  
Nice to talk to you. Let me know how I can 
help. 
Lauren 
  
Dear Minister Wells 
  
I’d like to request a meeting to offer some 
assistance in the Government’s challenge 
of responding to the Murphy review 
recommendations, and the issues raised 

 You don't often get email from . Learn why this is important  
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in tonight’s 4-Corners show. I am one of 
the people interviewed. I pitched the 
show to the ABC, after reflecting on my 10 
years of gambling policy advocacy.  
  
In late 2022, I had the privilege of 
receiving a Churchill Fellowship. I went to 
six Europeans countries, and the UK to 
meet with gambling regulators and 
investigate gambling regulation, 
specifically ‘what works?’. It was an eye-
opener. They were doing so much, and 
making so much headway. 
  
Many of the Murphy review 
recommendations were informed by what 
I learned in Europe. For the 18 months 
after my return I gave presentations and 
ran workshops with regulators, 
departmental and ministerial staff 
involved in gambling policy, MPs, the 
gambling industry and others … however 
with the passage of time since the Inquiry, 
and the change of Ministers and advisors, 
much of this knowledge has been lost. 
People move on. 
  
I would like to offer my expertise to 
discuss some realistic options to assist the 
government to navigate the policy and 
regulatory challenges. Some of these 
options haven’t been discussed to date 
with the government, as there were new 
developments internationally that missed 
the Murphy Inquiry consultation period.  
  
There is a lot that can be done, that 
doesn’t involve tackling advertising, given 
the political-industry battles. It would be 
nice to not have advertising, but in my 
mind, it is not the most important 
recommendation. There are other items 
that are even more impactful in harm 
prevention. 
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About my role 
  
I worked for the peak body, Financial 
Counselling Australia for 15 years, and 
spent the last decade on gambling policy. 
My role was ‘Director of Policy and 
Advocacy.’ The 2015-16 review into the 
online gambling industry (O’Farrell 
review) was the result of my first report 
'Duds, Mugs and the A-List’. The first 
tranche of reforms came from the 
recommendations in this 2015 report 
including: the National Self Exclusion 
Register, ban on credit, activity 
statements, and the consumer protection 
framework and more. They just took 
about 8 years to be implemented. They 
were always meant to just be the starting 
point. We knew they would never be 
enough to prevent harm. 
  
Being a lawyer by training, and working in 
the consumer (legal) advocacy area, I tend 
to focus on consumer protections that are 
legally enshrined. So I read legislation, in 
Australian jurisdictions and overseas. I try 
to figure out what works and where the 
points of failure are. From my 15 years in 
financial counselling realm I I take the 
notions of consumer protection from 
established industries such as banking, 
telecommunications, energy, debt 
collection etc. and apply these concepts 
and practices to improving gambling 
consumer protections. 
  
As Minister you haven’t heard from me 
before as last year I took long service 
leave (walked a camino), and decided to 
close the chapter with Financial 
Counselling Australia. The gambling work 
exposed me to trauma, including 
gambling suicides and I needed a break 
from its intensity. I am currently writing a 

MO 26-133 - Document 18

R
el

ea
se

d 
un

de
r t

he
 F

O
I A

ct
 1

98
2 

by
 th

e 
M

in
is

te
r f

or
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns



7

book (not on gambling) and doing a little 
consulting work.  
  

 
Warm regards 
  
Lauren 
  
Lauren Levin 
Gambling Policy Hub (consulting 
company) 

 
  
  
  

  

  

  

OFFICIAL 
  

 
 

OFFICIAL 
<Mail Attachment.ics> 
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Please find aƩached a leƩer regarding the implementaƟon of recommendaƟons from the Murphy Inquiry 
and a request to meet with Minister Wells to discuss these.  
 

 will be in Canberra on the 29th of October for a Parliamentary Friends of Women’s 
Health event and would be happy to meet with the Minister on this day if she is available.  
 
Best wishes,  
 

 
 

 
Professor of Public Health 
InsƟtute for Health TransformaƟon 
Deakin University  

 
 
Editor-in-Chief 
Health PromoƟon InternaƟonal 
hƩps://academic.oup.com/heapro 

 
 
 
 
Important Notice: The contents of this email are intended solely for the named addressee and are confidential; any unauthorised use, 
reproduction or storage of the contents is expressly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please delete it and any attachments 
immediately and advise the sender by return email or telephone. 
 
Deakin University does not warrant that this email and any attachments are error or virus free.  
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From: Greg Wallace < @adstandards.com.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 28 October 2025 11:02 AM
To:
Cc:
Subject: Fw: Notes and materials from Thursday 23 October
Attachments: Introduction to Ad Standards for Office of the Hon Anika Wells MP  Minister for 

Communications and Minister for Sport.pdf

Hi   in addition to the note further below, we also discussed last Thursday the 'Code of Ethics' - our 
major code. There is a periodic review in progress and open for industry and public consultation to ensure 
the Code of Ethics evolves and is always fit for purpose. The review is outlined on the link below. 
 
AANA Code of Ethics Review 2025 Discussion Paper.pdf  
 
 
Thanks, Greg 
 
Gregory Wallace 
Executive Director 
 
E @adstandards.com.au 
P  
 
adstandards.com.au 
 

 
  

Follow us on LinkedIn or subscribe to get the latest news.  

We acknowledge the traditional custodians of country throughout Australia. We pay our respects to 
them, and to Elders past and present. 
 
Important: The contents of this email and any attachments may be confidential and/or subject to 
copyright. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the sender by return email, delete this 
email and any attachments from your system and destroy any copies. Unauthorised use of the contents 
of this email and any attachment is prohibited. Unless stated or apparent from its terms, any opinions 
expressed in this email or its attachments are solely those of the author and do not represent those of 
Ad Standards or the Australian Association of National Advertisers. No representation is made that this 
email is free of viruses. Virus scanning is recommended and is the responsibility of the recipient. 

 

From: Greg Wallace 
Sent: Tuesday, 28 October 2025 9:21 AM 
To: @mo.communications.gov.au> 
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Cc:  
Subject: Notes and materials from Thursday 23 October  
  
Hi  thanks again for the discussion last week and the opportunity to introduce Ad Standards and our 
role as the advertising self-regulator - 'the advertising watchdog' as we're often referred to! Attached for 
reference is a concise copy of the materials we shared at the meeting. Thank you also for the suggested 
contacts within respective Agencies. 
 
We also mentioned a number of other jurisdictions are watching with interest the impending social media 
restrictions for Under 16's. The advertising regulators from Spain and Romania in particular advised their 
governments have drafted,  are drafting or looking at further legislation in this space following Australia's 
lead. 
 
Please feel free to contact us at any time re any fact checks, questions, issues or where perspectives are 
required. We may reach out in 3-6 months' time to update you, and we'll will also look to provide you with 
or brief you when we have community research findings of note. 
 
 
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
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